City of
ASHINGTON 1 ERRACE
Uk

Regular City Council Meeting
Tuesday, October 15 ,2024
5249 South 400 East
Washington Terrace, UT 84405
801.393.8681

www.washingtonterracecity.com

As a public service, Council Meetings are streamed on the City of Washington Terrace YouTube channel at :
www.youtube.com/(@WashingtonTerraceCity

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY PERMISSION NOTICE

By attending this meeting/event, you consent to the use of your photograph, voice, likeness, and image in broadcasts
of this meeting/event, and in subsequent productions drawn from video or audio recordings of this meeting/event, in
the sole and absolute discretion of the City of Washington Terrace. The city retains copyright for all video and audio
recordings. Video and audio recordings may not be modified, manipulated, or distributed in any way without the
express written consent of the City Manager.

1. WORK SESSION 5:00 P.M.
Topics to include, but are not limited to:
e Urban Chicken Ordinance review

2. ROLL CALL 6:00 P.M.

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

4. WELCOME

S. CONSENT ITEMS

5.1 APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND OCTOBER 1, 2024, COUNCIL MEETING
MINUTES

Any point of order or issue regarding items on the agenda or the order of the agenda need to be addressed
here prior to the approval of the agenda. Minutes approved in open meeting become the official record.

6. SPECIAL ORDER
Special orders will proceed as follows: Chair introduction of item, staff/applicant presentation, questions/comments
by Council, Chair opens public hearing and invites citizens to comment on hearing; Chair closes hearing, final
Council discussion.

6.1 PUBLIC HEARING: AMENDMENT TO FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 BUDGET

To receive and consider comment on amending the Fiscal Year 2024- 2025 Budget.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons who have need of special accommodation should contact the City Recorder at
801-395-8283.

CERTIFICATE OF POSTING
The undersigned, duly appointed City Recorder, does hereby certify that the above notice and agenda was posted in three public places within the City
of Washington Terrace City limits and sent to the Standard Examiner at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. Amy Rodriguez, City Recorder.


http://www.washingtonterracecity.com/

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.4

8.5

7. CITIZEN COMMENTS
This is an opportunity to address the Council regarding your concerns or ideas that are not on the agenda as part of a
public hearing. Please limit your comments to no more than 3 minutes.
8. NEW BUSINESS
8.1 MOTION/RESOLUTION 24-15: APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION AMENDING THE

FISCAL 2024-2025 BUDGET

MOTION/ORDINANCE 24-09: APPROVAL OF ORDINANCE TO AMEND
WASHINGTON TERRACE CITY MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 19.01.130 TO

COMPLY WITH STATE LAW RELATING TO STORM WATER REGULATIONS
Amending section 19.01.130 to comply with H.B. 507 Construction Amendments, which will
become effective January 1, 2025.

PRESENTATION: FIRE DEPARTMENT QUARTERLY REPORT
PRESENTATION: ANIMAL CONTROL QUARTLERY REPORT
PRESENTATION: SHERIFF OFFICE QUARTERLY REPORT

DISCUSSION/MOTION: ADOPTION OF STATEMENT OF CIVILITY

A statement of expected decorum for communication

9. COUNCIL COMMUNICATION WITH STAFF

This is a discussion item only. No final action will be taken.

10. ADMINISTRATION REPORTS

This is an opportunity for staff to address the Council pertaining to administrative items.

11. UPCOMING EVENTS

Oct. 24%: Planning Commission meeting (Tentative)

Nov 5%: ELECTION DAY

Nov 5t: City Council Work Session (5:00 p.m.) and Council Meeting (6:00 p.m.)
Nov 19 City Council Work Session (5:00p.m.) and Council Meeting (6:00 p.m.)
Nov 22-23: City Council Retreat

Nov 28-29: City Offices closed for Thanksgiving Holiday

12. ADJOURN THE MEETING- MAYOR ALLEN

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons who have need of special accommodation should contact the City Recorder at

801-395-8283.

CERTIFICATE OF POSTING

The undersigned, duly appointed City Recorder, does hereby certify that the above notice and agenda was posted in three public places within the City
of Washington Terrace City limits and sent to the Standard Examiner at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. Amy Rodriguez, City Recorder.



CITY OF WASHINGTON TERRACE
ORDINANCE NO 24-07

URBAN CHICKENS

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WASHINGTON TERRACE CITY, UTAH,
ADOPTING CHAPTER 17.86 REGULATING URBAN CHICKENS; SEVERABILITY;
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the City of Washington Terrace (“City”) is a municipal corporation, duly organized
and existing under the laws of the State of Utah;

WHEREAS, Utah Code Annotated §§ 10-8-84 and 10-8-60 allow municipalities in the State of
Utah to exercise certain police powers and nuisance abatement powers, including but not limited to
providing for safety and preservation of health, promotion of prosperity, improve community well-being,
peace and good order for the inhabitants of the City;

WHEREAS, Title 10, Chapter 9a, of the Utah Code Annotated, 1953, as amended, enables
municipalities to regulate land use and development;

WHEREAS, there is renewed interest in raising chickens in the urban environments and the City
desires to allow for such while mitigating adverse impacts;

WHEREAS, after publication of the required notice the Planning Commission held its public
hearing on August 29,2024, to take public comment on this proposed Ordinance, and subsequently gave
its recommendation to this Ordinance;

WHEREAS, the City Council received the recommendation from the Planning Commission and
held its public meeting on , and desires to act on this Ordinance;

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the City Council of the City of Washington Terrace as
follows:

Section 1. Repealer. Any Ordinance that conflict with this Ordinance is repealed.
Section 2. Amendment. Chapter 17.86 is hereby adopted to read as follows:
Chapter 17.86
URBAN CHICKENS
Sections:

17.86.010 Purpose.

17.86.020 Land Use Permit.
17.86.030 Application.

17.86.040 Regulations.

17.86.050 Inspection.

17.86.060 Enforcement and Appeal.



Washington Terrace, Utah Page 2
Ordinance No. 24-07

17.86.010 Purpose.

The purpose of this Chapter is to permit the keeping and/or raising of chickens in certain single-family
zones as provided in this Chapter for the sole purpose of family food production. Any chicken kept as
provided in this Chapter is not considered or otherwise deemed a household pet.

17.86.020. Land Use Permit.

Any person keeping and/or raising one or more chickens in the City shall first obtain a Land Use Permit
under this Chapter. Any Land Use Permit issued under this Chapter shall be made by application of the
property owner and continue under this Chapter for the duration of ownership upon which time any Land
Use Permit shall cease. No Land Use Permit under this Chapter shall run with the land.

17.86.030 Application.
A complete application for a Land Use Permit filed with the City under this Chapter shall include:

1. A one-time license fee of one hundred dollars ($100.00).

2. Property Owner Authorization and Affidavit that states: The undersigned, being duly sworn,
depose that I am (we are) the applicants of the property involved and that we agree to abide by the
provisions contained herein and acknowledges that he or she is responsible to know and
understand all local, state, or federal regulations related to the keeping of one or more chickens at
the location of the property listed in the application.

3. Applicant’s contact information, including:

a. Legal name.
b. Phone number.
c. Email.
d. Other contact information as needed.
4. Address of the property where chickens are proposed to be located and proof of ownership.
Site Plan showing the:
a. North arrow.
b. Building lot size.
c. All property boundaries.
d. All existing and proposed public streets, private streets, drives, right-of-ways, and
easements shown including widths.

Location of existing curb, gutter, and sidewalk.

Location of all existing structures and accessory buildings on the property with accurate

square footage.

g. Location of proposed structures and/or proposed additions to existing structures with
proposed square footage.

h. Location and size of any existing or proposed septic tanks and leach fields, if applicable.

hd

™o

17.86.040 Regulations.
The keeping and/or raising of one or more chickens is subject to the following regulations:

1. Compliance. Any chicken shall be kept in a manner consistent with this Chapter.

2. Family Only. Any chicken shall be kept strictly for family food production, and not for commercial
sale or personal income. No egg sales whatsoever.

3. Prohibited. No roosters shall be kept, and no breeding is permitted on the property.



Washington Terrace, Utah Page 3
Ordinance No. 24-07

4. Keeping. Only chicken hens may be kept on a residential lot in accordance with the following
standards:

a.

s

™o a0

g.

Lot size requirements:
i. 6,000 square foot lot: keeping up to three (3) hens.

ii. 8,000 square foot lot: keeping up to four (4) hens.

iii. 10,000+ square foot lot: keeping up to six (6) hens.
Any chicken shall be kept in one coop or one properly enclosed area at all times in the
rear yard as depicted on an approved Site Plan.
No chicken shall be permitted to roam outside a coop or enclosed area.
A coop shall be covered, ventilated, and rodent and predator resistant.
A coop shall not be constructed of scrap or dilapidated materials.
The coop shall be built with a finished, all weather exterior material.
Any crowing hen shall be culled.

5. Setbacks. The coop or enclosure shall be located:

a.

b.

c.
d.
e.

At least fifteen (15) feet from any primary residential dwelling.

At least twenty-five (25) feet from any primary residential dwelling on an adjoining
property.

At least five (5) feet from any property line.

Maximum coop height is seven (7) feet, at its highest point.

Any time a heating device used in a pen or coop, such pen or coop must be separated at
least fifteen (15) feet from any residential dwelling.

6. Maintenance.

a.

17.86.050

Any coop and/or enclosure shall be maintained:
i. In an orderly and sanitary condition, and in a manner that prevents a detectable
odor at the property line.

ii. Bedding used shall be pine shavings because it dries out the manure and can be
sifted through with a litter scoop. Hay and straw is not acceptable as it is non-
absorbent and becomes wet and matted to the floor.

iii. Chicken manure is high in nitrogen and can release ammonia and cause noxious
odors. It is also a potential carrier of disease, parasites, and is a medium that
breeds unpleasant insects, such as flies and as such manure shall be sifted and
removed from the property and disposed of in a lawful dump. Pine shavings shall
also be removed and changed regularly.

Dead animals shall be immediately removed from the lot and disposed of in a lawful
dump.

Chicken feed shall be stored in a covered container and in a manner that prevents access
from rodents or other animals.

No growth or vegetation other than sod grass is permitted within five (5) feet of any coop.
The area within five (5) feet of the perimeter of any coop shall be unobstructed, except the
side where a coop may be attached to an accessory building.

No coop, pen, cage, or similar structure shall exceed one hundred fifty (150) square feet
(including the coop, run, and/or enclosure).

Any chicken found at-large of the rear yard of owner’s lot is subject to being culled or
confiscated.

Inspection.

The property will be inspected upon application and periodically to verify compliance with this Chapter.
Upon an initial application, reinspection is required if property does not meet requirements of this Chapter.
For each reinspection the applicant is subject to a fifty ($50.00) reinspection fee.



Washington Terrace, Utah Page 4
Ordinance No. 24-07

17.86.060 Enforcement and Appeal.

A Land Use Permit may be denied, suspended, or revoked for a violation of this Chapter. A violation of
this Chapter is subject to an infractions and a fine not to exceed $750 per violation. Appeals are subject to
this Title.

Section 3: Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction determines that any part of this
Ordinance is unconstitutional or invalid, then such portion of this Ordinance, or specific application of
this Ordinance, shall be severed from the remainder, which shall continue in full force and effect.

Section 4: Effective date. This Ordinance takes effect immediately upon adoption and posting.
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council on this day of ,20
Mayor

ATTEST:

City Recorder

RECORDED this day of ,20

PUBLISHED OR POSTED this day of ,20

CERTIFICATE OF PASSAGE AND PUBLICATION OR POSTING
According to the provision of U.C.A. §10-3-713, 1953 as amended, I, the City Recorder of Washington
Terrace City, hereby certify that foregoing ordinance was duly passed and published, or posted at: 1)

, 2) , and 3) on the above referenced dates.

DATE:

City Recorder



OO0 9 N L A W

A A D D PBA D W W W W W W W W W WDHKN N MNDNDNDDNDDNDNDNDN P = e e e e e e
N A W —= O VOB WNDFRLOOVU NN P WND=—=OWVINNWN P WND—=O

City of Washington Terrace

Minutes of a Regular City Council meeting
Held on October 1, 2024
City Hall, 5249 South 400 East, Washington Terrace City, Utah

MAYOR, COUNCIL, AND STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT
Mayor Mark C. Allen

Council Member Jill Christiansen
Council Member Zunayid Z. Zishan
Council Member Cheryl Parkinson
Council Member Jeff West

Council Member Michael Thomas
General Planner Tyler Seaman

Code Enforcement Officer Martin Nish
City Recorder Amy Rodriguez

City Manager Tom Hanson

Others Present
Planning Commission Chairman Steve Jacobson

1. WORK SESSION 5:00 P.M.
Topics to include, but are not limited to:
e Urban Chicken Ordinance

Hanson stated that the Urban Chicken Ordinance has had many reviews from Planning Commission. The
Council discussed the approved version that was recommended by the Planning Commission.

Council Member Parkinson wanted clarification that renters cannot have chickens unless the property
owner applies for them. Chairman Jacobson stated that the intent of the Planning Commission is for renters
not to have chickens. Mayor Allen stated that it should not be put in the hands of a property owner if they
do not even live on property. Council Member Thomas stated that it becomes a revolving problem when
renters leave, noting that the next renter may not want the chicken coop.

Seaman stated that code enforcement works off the owner of the property. He stated that if there are
chicken problems at a rental, code enforcement will cite the owner. This becomes problematic if owners
cannot be located. Seaman stated that the Planning Commission did not want renters to have chickens.

Hanson stated that there should be clear language that “Rental Properties are prohibited from having
chickens”.

Council Member Zishan stated that South Ogden charges $10.00 for their application fee. He stated that he
does not see why the cost would be more than $10.00. Chairman Jacobson stated that at a $10.00 fee, the

CC Minutes 10-01-24



46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
&3
84
&5
86
87
88
&9
90

city would be subsidizing chickens. Council Member Zishan stated that the money we are paying
employees is already in the payroll. He stated that he doesn’t understand why time and employee salary
should affect the fee. He stated that payroll is not affected with the addition of this service. Council
Member West stated that he spoke with South Ogden code enforcement, and he got the impression that
they were not going to enforce the law. He stated that we need to look at the extra burden that we are
putting on code enforcement. He stated that code enforcement is a high priority within our city. He stated
that if we take the code enforcement officer away to look at chicken issues, we are taking him away from
other issues within the city.

Hanson stated that our code enforcement would be taken away for “premium services”, such as the
chicken enforcement. He stated that the officer would be taken away from normal operations which are
funded from general fund activities. Council Member Zishan stated that once we pass the ordinance it is no
longer premium service, it is just service.

Council Member Parkinson noted that this is a one-time fee. Council Member Zishan stated that he does
not see any reason for code enforcement to go house to house to check on chicken code enforcement after
the initial inspection.

Council Member Christiansen stated that the code is making it already hard for people to have chickens
and feels that the $100.00 is excessive on top of the regulations.

Council Member Christiansen stated that the site plan requirement assumes that we do not trust residents
to abide by the code. She stated that having residents submit a site plan is saying that we don’t think they
understand the ordinance. Council Member West stated that the site plan shows that the resident
understands what is expected of them and that they understand the ordinance. He stated that there must be
some trust factor, but we also need to know that they understand the guidelines to protect their neighbors.
Council Member Christiansen stated that people are going to be honorable and work things out.

Council Member West stated that we do receive complaints about chickens in the city. He stated that we
need to establish guidelines to work within an entire community. Council Member West stated that the
initial ordinance was based on other ordinances and assessments on a variety of cities, not just South
Ogden City. He stated that many cities have guidelines and setbacks. Council Member Christiansen stated
that the Council opened up the infill ordinance to allow people to build affordable housing. She stated that
there is a housing crisis coming and we need to open our sights to make sure that we give citizens what
they need.

Council Member West asked if there is enough space in city lots to house the chickens. Council Member
Christiansen stated that chickens can live in an apartment and not have any issues.

Mayor Allen stated that when we opened infill lots, there were strict requirements regarding the lots.
Council Member Zishan stated that we need to be fair.

Chairman Jacobson stated that ordinance requires that a house needs to be 30 feet from your back fence.
He stated that there is no room for a coop if we stayed with the 25 ft requirement, noting that is why the
Planning Commission changed it to 15 feet.

Seaman stated that it can become a very tricky conversation when inspection comes around if we don’t
have some type of site plan or something to go from that we can enforce. He stated that if there are any
lawsuits or it comes before the court, we need to have something to show the Judge that the city approved
a certain type of coop, location, or requirement for the chickens.

Council Member West stated that without a site plan, a resident can spend time and money to build their

CC Minutes 10-01-24



91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135

coop and then told later they have to take it down. Council Member Zishan stated that residents may not
know how to make a site plan. Hanson stated that the site plan protects the resident if they build, and the
property is too small. Seaman stated that he sometimes makes site plan with the resident so that they can
understand the ordinance. He stated that if there are complaints and the city has something to go off as to
what we allowed, it will help the resident. He stated that the ordinance is trying to set a precedent. He
stated that a restriction of a site plan is not unusual.

Council Member Zishan stated that we could have a basic plan showing the house and location of the
structure, along with the lot size. Council Member Christiansen stated that the site plan needs to be
simplified.

Council Member Parkinson stated that there are a lot of lots that are under 6,000 square feet within the
city. Council Member Zishan stated that if we enforce the 15- foot setback from the house and the 5- foot
property line, there may be some residences that are not going to be able to have chickens. Council
Member West stated that with appropriate offsets and restrictions on the coop, it may be hard to find lots
that are less than 6,000 sq ft that can accommodate chickens. He stated that there is not enough room on
smaller lots for chickens in the city in which we live. Council Member West stated that this is the area
where former Councils have come to an impasse on the ordinance. Council Member Zishan stated that
there is no point in passing the ordinance if no one will be allowed to meet the requirements. Council
Member Thomas stated that he would be able to have chickens on his 4,000 sq. ft property, however, he
would have to give up almost two thirds of his backyard.

Council Member Parkinson stated that the ordinance and lot size rules emphasizes the division of “upper
Terrace” and “lower Terrace”. Council Member Christiansen stated that the voters speak for the city
wanting chickens by voting in Council Members who support chickens. She stated that we need to listen to
the residents and allow everyone to have chickens.

Council Member Christiansen asked why not give residents the opportunity to have chickens if it is
important to them. She wants to allow for the possibility. Council Member Zishan stated that the ordinance
needs to be beneficial to everyone. He wanted to know why the city is not doing the best that we can to
help those who want chickens.

Council Member West asked if we would be silencing the voice of the residents who do not want chickens
by allowing anyone to have them. He stated that there is a very vocal group who want chickens, and there
is also a group of residents who do not want chickens within the city. He stated that if we keep adjusting or
eliminating the setbacks, we may be discounting the wishes of those who do not want to live near
chickens. He stated that the other cities who allow chickens have larger lot sizes or setbacks to make this
work. Council Member Zishan stated that Salt Lake City has much smaller lot sizes and they are able to
enjoy all their rights. Council Member West asked that isn’t it a right to feel safe in your community,
noting that it is something we need to consider if we are introducing something into the city that could be
carriers of disease or parasites. Council Member Christiansen stated that racoons, rodents and mice are
already in the city, and they are not going to increase by allowing people to have their property rights.
Council Member Zishan stated that Council changed the leash law because they learned something along
the way and needed to adjust the ordinance already in place. He stated that the proposed chicken ordinance
is blocking everything to begin with.

Council Member West stated that if we start too low and allow smaller lot lines and we find out a year
from now there are issues, we cannot come back and say that they cannot have chickens. He stated that we
need to start with rules and assess as we learn.

CC Minutes 10-01-24



136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180

Hanson stated that we do not want to add more to manage to those residents who have code violations on
their property. Mayor Allen stated that we must have a simple site plan. Council Member Christiansen
stated that we cannot over- specify and be too detailed with requirements that we only open this up to a
few. She stated that we must open it up to the uniqueness of the Terrace. Council Member West asked
where the exceptions should be if we want to shoehorn something into a place it shouldn’t be, noting that
there could be many exceptions to manage. Council Member Zishan wanted to know why there is a 5 ft.
rule on setbacks. Seaman stated that it is fire code. He stated that home insurance expects the city to follow
National Building codes to insure homes. He stated that the National Business code is a 5 ft. lot line.
Council Member Zishan stated that he should be able to have the coop anywhere on his property, taking
out the 15 ft setback requirement while keeping the heater rule of 15 ft.

Council Member Thomas stated that he doesn’t know of anyone who uses heaters with their chickens.
Council Member West stated that he feels that this topic needs to be researched further. He stated that we
need to do what is right for the city and not make an arbitrary decision.

CC Minutes 10-01-24



181
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195
196

197
198
199
200

201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213
214
215
216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226

MAYOR., COUNCIL, AND STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT
Mayor Mark C. Allen

Council Member Jill Christiansen

Council Member Zunayid Z. Zishan

Council Member Cheryl Parkinson

Council Member Jeff West

Council Member Michael Thomas

General Planner Tyler Seaman

City Recorder Amy Rodriguez

City Manager Tom Hanson

Others Present
Amy Miller, Joseph Hartley, Val Shupe, Robert Warlaumont,

2. ROLL CALL 6:00 P.M.

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

4. WELCOME
Mayor Allen explained what happened in the work session regarding Urban Chickens. He stated that
it was decided that there needs to be more research on lot size and setbacks. He stated that we do not
want to “just pass” an ordinance to stop talking about it. He stated that there were six different
opinions and differing views. He stated that the Terrace is a unique city and it is going to take a lot
more time to come to a decision. He stated that if residents want to talk about the issue or offer suggestions
that they can call him or any of the Council Members.

S. CONSENT ITEMS

5.1 APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND SEPTEMBER 17, 2024, COUNCIL MEETING
MINUTES
Item 5.1 approved by general consent.

6. CITIZEN COMMENTS

Amy Miller, representing the United Methodist Church, mentioned that there is a children and parents
community event “Falloween” on October 25", She stated that the fall boutique will be held on November
1&2. She stated that the rummage sale brought in $1,600 for school supplies.

Nedra Seal stated that she was in charge of a petition that circulated two years ago, and that it was clear to
her that almost everyone section she went to had people who are against having chickens. She stated that
she feels that the petition should be part of the record, as they are voices as well. She stated that the
Council Member emails may be a better way to keep records of the conversations with Council rather than
CC Minutes 10-01-24



227
228
229
230
231
232
233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258
259
260
261
262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270
271

a phone call. She asked the Council to be responsible and think of the health needs of the community. She
stated that the city is counting on them to do the right thing.

Note: The City is in possession of the petition that was turned in September 6, 2022, with 70 signatures of
residents who signed the petition to not allow chickens within the city. It has been requested that the
petition be acknowledged as part of this citizen comment.

Braden Shupe stated that he is voicing his opposition against chickens. He stated that there are a lot of
racoons in the Terrace. He stated that his concern is that chickens will bring more racoons and varmints to
neighborhoods. He stated that some of the prior reasons some of the residents want chickens to save
money on eggs. He stated that it was proven through the State and USU Extension that having chickens is
not economical.

Shupe stated that rats are coming in to eat bird seeds which are similar to the seeds for chickens, and he
stated that this will bring in rats. He stated that racoons are considered a public nuisance. He stated that
rodents are overtaking his neighborhood. He stated that there is no benefit to having chickens as they bring
problems to residences.

Bob Warlaumont stated that he believes that 90 percent of the Terrace is a residential community and not a
farm community. He stated that goats, cows, horses and chickens are farm animals. He stated that the city
doesn’t have enough in the budget to take care of this issue. He stated that the city cannot enforce lawn
care, parking, and other code violations as it is. He stated that chickens are not healthy and carry disease.
He stated that he estimates that it would be only 10 percent or less of the residents who would have
chickens. He stated that he feels 90 percent of the citizens do not want chickens allowed.

Val Shupe stated that we have had two councils who have already said no chickens allowed in the Terrace.
He stated that the reason people are not coming to the Council meetings to voice their opinions against
chickens is because they are tired of butting their heads against the wall and listening to people say, “we
have to have chickens”. Shupe stated that the city needs to be careful because chickens will bring racoons
and varmint. He stated that he has coyotes, racoons, and fox in his yard already. He stated that Council
must be very careful with what is allowed, especially with the types of structures the chickens will be in.
He stated that they can become dilapidated and asked who will take care of them and dispose of them.
Shupe stated that city and the yard sizes are not conducive to chickens and that Council really needs to
think about what they are doing.

Chuck Jensen stated that his neighbor live-trapped 22 racoons within one month. He stated that is what we
will be dealing with if we brought chickens into the city. He stated that we do not want any farm animals
within the city. He stated that chickens, pigs, cattle, goats, and horses are all farm animals. Jensen stated
that when Council passes an ordinance it should be enforced. He stated that the Council should back up
their decisions and not let people keep their chickens “until too many people complain about it” as they are
allowing now.

Joseph Hartley stated that his wife is pro-chicken, and he is happy to have them if allowed. He stated that
there is a lot of misinformation about chickens. He stated that chickens kill wolves, mice, and rats. He
stated that chicken feed is put in a feeder and that it is basic common sense not to leave the feed on the
ground. He stated that there is too much misinformation out there about chickens.

CC Minutes 10-01-24



272
273
274
275
276
277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284
285
286
287
288
289

290
291
292

293
294
295
296
297
298
299
300
301
302
303
304
305
306
307
308
309
310
311
312
313
314
315
316
317

7. NEW BUSINESS

7.1 DISCUSSION/DIRECTION: DISCUSSION AND DIRECTION ON PROPOSED
ORDINANCE 24-07: URBAN CHICKENS

Mayor Allen asked if the discussion should be continued or have assignments to research what was spoken
about in the work session.
Council Member Zishan stated that Council spoke about the lot sizes during the work session and suggests
that we need to do the math and see if it is even feasible to have chickens in the proposed lot sizes. Council
Member Thomas stated that the item should be brought to the survey so that we can get an unbiased
opinion done by the city. Council Member Zishan stated that there is no point to survey.
Council Member West stated that we are not in a position to make any decisions at this time, as more
research will need to be completed.
Council Member Christiansen stated that we should have more work sessions on the matter.

Motion by Council Member West
Seconded by Council Member Thomas
To table the discussion to a later date
Approved Unanimously (5-0)

7.2 MOTION/ORDINANCE 24-08: MOTION TO APPROVE ORDINANCE ADOPTING
RE-ZONING OF 5580 SOUTH ADAMS AVENUE FROM O-1 “OPEN SPACE” TO C-1
“COMMERCIAL PROPERTY”

Seaman stated that the proposed zoning change is for the property on Adams Avenue and 5700 South. He
stated that the City owns the parcel, and it has been treated as an Open Space, basically a park, that we
maintained. Seaman stated that the City Council directed staff to research the property for best use.
Seaman stated that the property has been for sale for two and a half years. He stated that we have an
applicant who would like to purchase the property for development. Seaman stated that we need to rezone
the property from open space to commercial for the development to happen. Seaman explained that the
proposed development would fall into a C-1 commercial zone. He stated that C-1 zones are geared for
professional and medical types of offices. He stated that the surrounding properties are in the C-1 zone,
noting that the City Public Works Shop is behind the property.

Seaman stated that a public hearing was held at the Planning Commission, stating that the only comment
was a concern about the clarity of the exhibit map that was included in the packet. He stated that the
exhibit is a general exhibit to show where the property is located. He stated that the Planning side will
make sure that whatever goes on the property meets zoning, fire code, and property line requirements.

Mayor Allen stated his appreciation to Seaman and the Planning Commission for their work on this
project.

Council Member Parkinson asked the difference between the C-1 and C-2 designation, asking if there
would be an issue if something other than a medical office was developed. Seaman explained that there is
not a huge difference between the designations, noting that a C-2 zone is commercial business that fits into
residential areas more easily. He stated that the C-1 zone is more professional and medical and businesses.
He stated that the surrounding area to this parcel is also C-1.

CC Minutes 10-01-24



318
319
320
321
322
323
324
325
326
327
328
329
330
331
332
333
334
335
336
337
338
339
340
341
342
343
344
345
346
347
348
349
350
351
352
353
354
355
356
357
358
359
360
361
362

Hanson stated that the development being proposed is a 14,000 sq. ft. office building and falls in line with
city goals. Hanson stated that the building will be a gateway business.

Motion by Council Member Christiansen
Seconded by Council Member West
To approve Ordinance 24-08 adopting the
Re-zoning of 5580 South Adams Avenue
from O-1 “Open Space” to C-1 “Commercial Property”
Approved unanimously (5-0)
Roll Call Vote

8. COUNCIL COMMUNICATION WITH STAFF

Council Member Christiansen thanked the Public Works Department for getting the lights fixed at the
elementary school. She thanked all the residents for working through the 300 West construction project,
noting that it went smoothly and that the finished road is very nice. Council Member West echoed the
sentiment stating that 300 West looks good, and it was finished on time. Hanson stated that chip seal will
be completed next year.

Council Member Zishan stated that Council received an email on water billing. He stated that it shows
4000 gallons as the base fee. He noted that any overage over the base is charged an overage fee, and it
appears that the overage is charged in 1,000 gallon increments. He asked if the overage can be broken

done by 200 gallons instead so that people are not charged a high overage if they only go over by 100

gallons. Hanson stated that he will check with the department as to how it can be billed.

Council Member Parkinson stated that she has heard from numerous people that they are grateful that 300
West is back open and stated that residents were happy that they were informed throughout the project.
Hanson asked if Council they would like to hold an open house event to bring back the residents to receive
feedback on how they thought the project was handled. He stated that it could be an opportunity to hear
from the residents as to what worked and what didn’t work. Council liked the idea, stating that it would be
very valuable.

Council Member Thomas stated that he received phone calls from concerned residents stating that there
are a lot of trailers on the road for 5700 South and asked about the progress on the new ordinance
addressing the issue. He stated that the trailer east of the school is impacting the school, stating that it has
narrowed the road, and some students are fearful of driving down the road.

Hanson stated that he is working with Seaman, Lt. Cowley, and our prosecuting attorney on how we can
best enforce the ordinance. Hanson stated that there is language already in code for unattended trailers that
is clearly defined. Council Member Parkinson cautioned not to limit the wording to commercial. Hanson
stated that we have specific ordinances for how long a trailer can be left on the road. Hanson stated that we
do not want trailers on the road all the time and staff is looking for the best way to enforce that.

Council Member Thomas stated that he has received complaints that the court is over-scheduled. He asked
if there was a way to schedule it better. Hanson explained that the court is the judicial arm of the city
independent of administration and independent from the Council. He stated that the judge sets his schedule

CC Minutes 10-01-24



363
364
365
366
367
368
369
370
371
372
373
374
375
376
377
378
379
380
381
382
383
384
385
386
387
388
389
390
391
392
393
394
395
396
397
398
399
400
401
402
403
404
405
406

407
408

for his court. He stated that the judge managed the case in question as best as he could. Hanson stated that
the judge works with his team managing the court environment.

Seaman stated that streets and vehicular violations should be reported through dispatch so that it is routed
correctly, noting that other code violations can be reported through the non-emergency portal on our
website.

Mayor Allen stated that he appreciates the work that was done on the 300 West Project. He stated that he
has expressed his appreciation to Riverdale City for letting us use part of their road for our detours.
Mayor Allen stated that the metal plates on the road were removed today. He stated that he noticed that
there were still some concrete, dirt, and other items were left around some of the storm drains, defeating
the purpose of the SWPP items place to protect the drainage system.

Mayor Allen stated that there is a semi-trailer parked on the weekends on 5550 South. He stated that semi-
trailers are too big to be parked there.

Mayor Allen asked if wi-fi in would be available in our parks through Connext. Council Member Zishan
stated that we must make sure that it would be available at all of our parks so that everyone can enjoy the
service. Council Member West stated that he met with a representative at the ULCT conference who
designs that type of project and will forward the information to Hanson.

9. ADMINISTRATION REPORTS

Hanson stated that there will be a cost to adding wi-fi to the parks. Hanson stated that we are using limited
bandwidth at Rohmer to run our cameras. Hanson stated that he will see how much it would cost to run the
wi-fi to all the parks. He stated that he is working on getting fiber in City Hall to help with our bandwidth.
Hanson stated that staff is looking to set up cameras at Lion’s Park.

Council Member West asked if we could get an estimate as to what it would cost so that the Council can
consider this option. Council Member Zishan suggested to look at prices and check the quality of the wi-fi.
Mayor Allen stated that the Lion’s Club is working on acquiring benches for Rohmer Park.

Hanson stated that the links for Everbridge is now live. This is the new mass notification system through
the county. Residents will need to sign up to receive information from the county. Hanson stated that
people can sign up and receive information on city projects, streets, water outages, and emergency
situations. Hanson stated that when there is an event in an area residents will be notified through their cell
phone. Hanson stated that users do not have a cost. The cost is on the counties in our region.

Hanson stated that his intent is to have the city-wide survey out by Thursday of this week.

Hanson followed up on the incident at Rohmer Park concerning the vandalism and fire of the temporary
restroom. He stated that the violators have agreed to pay full restitution by the end of the week.
10.
UPCOMING EVENTS
Oct. 14%: City Offices closed in Observance of Indigenous Peoples/Columbus Day Holiday
Oct. 15" City Council Meeting (6:00) p.m.
Oct. 24'": Planning Commission meeting (Tentative)

CC Minutes 10-01-24




409
410
411
412
413
414
415
416
417
418
419
420
421

11. ADJOURN THE MEETING- MAYOR ALLEN

Motion by Council Member Thomas
Seconded by Council Member Christiansen
To adjourn the meeting
Approved unanimously (5-0)

Time: 7:16 p.m

Date Approved

CC Minutes 10-01-24

City Recorder



City of

City Council ASHINGTON 1ERRACE
Staff Report Aok

Finance Department

Author: Shari’ Garrett

Subject: Budget Adjustment
Date: October 15, 2024
Type of Item: MOTION/RESOLUTION

Summary Recommendations: That the City Council, by resolution, approve the budget adjustment as
described in Resolution 24-15.

Description:
A. Topic: Budget Adjustment

B. Background: Each year (generally as part of the first budget adjustment of the new fiscal year), staff will
present to Council a proposed budget adjustment that includes rolling over unexpended (budget less
actual expended) capital funds from previously approved budgets.

Rolling over funds from previously approved budgets is typical with capital investments as encumbrances
and commitments are made at the project/capital investment level which can span over several fiscal
reporting periods vs operating budgets that span over one fiscal period.

Common reasons for rolling over funds:
¢ Incomplete Current Capital Projects.
Active projects currently being undertaken.
Example: 300 West Reconstruction project expenses are expected to span over 4 fiscal periods
(FY23-FY26) until project is closed out. The approved project budget will continue to “rollover”
until the budget is fully expended or the project is closed out.

e Accumulating Resources for Future Capital Investments.

The City is largely operating on a pay-as-you go financing strategy for current and near-term
capital needs. Each year resources are invested into near term future capital
projects/investments. These resources are “rolled over” multiple fiscal periods until accumulated
resources are met.

Example: The recent replacement of the Fire pumper truck was funded over 2 fiscal periods.
Additionally, future Fire/EMS capital fleet and equipment needs will also be funded over multiple
fiscal periods. The Rohmer Park baseball parking lot was also funded over multiple fiscal periods.

These capital projects/investments are identified in the City’s 5-year Capital Investment Plan
summary in the budget document.

C. Recommendation: That the City Council, by resolution, approve the budget adjustment as described in
Resolution 24-15.
D. Department Review: Finance



City of Washington Terrace
County of Weber, State of Utah

RESOLUTION NO. 24-15

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE CITY OF WASHINGTON TERRACE
FISCAL YEAR 2024-25 BUDGET

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the City Council of the City of Washington Terrace to
continue to function in an efficient and cost efficient manner in providing the citizens with a safe
and healthy environment; and

WHEREAS, the Washington Terrace City Council deems it necessary to amend the
Fiscal Year 2024-25 Budget in the following funds: Water Fund 50, Sewer Fund 51, Storm
Water Fund 52, Parks CIP Fund 53, General CIP Fund 55, and Roads CIP Fund 56 as described
in the attached budget worksheets.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Washington Terrace
City to amend the Fiscal Year 2024-25 budget as attached hereto.

APPROVED this 15" day of October 2024.

City of Washington Terrace

Mark C. Allen, Mayor

ATTEST:

(SEAL)

Amy Rodriguez, City Recorder
Roll Call Vote:

Board Member Jill Christiansen
Board Member Cheryl Parkinson
Board Member Michael Thomas
Board Member Jeff West

Board Member Zunayid Z. Zishan



Attachment
WTC Resolution No 24-15

CITY OF WASHINGTON TERRACE

Budget Worksheet - Budget Adj OCT fund50
Period 00/24 (07/01/2024) - 09/24 (09/30/2024)

Page: 1

2023-24 2023-24 2023-24 2024-25 2024-25 2024-25 Justification
Prior year Prior year Prior year Current year Prior year Current year
Account Number Account Title Budget Actual Unexpended Budget Unexpended Adj Budget
rollover
WATER ENTERPRISE FUND 50
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS & TRANSF
50-39-30 Use of Retained Earnings 1,460,684 1,460,684 32,145 1,333,360 1,365,505 . .
Roll over unexpended capital funds from prior year.

Total CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS & TRANSF: 1,460,684 1,460,684 32,145 1,333,360 1,365,505
CAPITAL PROJECTS
50-71-21 CW21 AMI Meter Reading System 675,839 406,688 269,151 0 269,151 269,151
50-71-56 CW56 171,500 155 171,345 415,000 171,345 586,345

Total CAPITAL PROJECTS: 847,339 406,842 440,497 415,000 440,496 855,496
CAPITAL EQUIPMENT
50-73-01 Electronic Meters & Radios 544,920 5,657 539,363 60,000 539,363 599,363
50-73-02 Capital Equipment 240,091 23,731 216,360 140,000 216,360 356,360
50-73-03 Fleet Replacements 188,785 51,644 137,141 0 137,141 137,141

Total CAPITAL EQUIPMENT: 973,796 80,932 892,864 200,000 892,864 1,092,864

WATER ENTERPRISE FUND 50 Revenue Total:

1,460,684 1,460,684 32,145 1,333,360 1,365,505
WATER ENTERPRISE FUND 50 Expenditure Total:
1,821,135 487,774 1,333,361 615,000 1,333,360 1,948,360
Total WATER ENTERPRISE FUND 50: -360,451 -487,774 127,323 -582,855 0 -582,855
Grand Totals: -360,451 -487,774 127,323 -582,855 0 -582,855




Attachment
WTC Resolution No 24-15

CITY OF WASHINGTON TERRACE

Budget Worksheet - Budget Adj OCT fund51
Period 00/24 (07/01/2024) - 09/24 (09/30/2024)

Page: 1

2023-24 2023-24 2023-24 2024-25 2024-25 2024-25 Justification
Prior year Prior year Prior year Current year Prior year Current year
Account Number Account Title Budget Actual Unexpended Budget Unexpended Adj Budget
rollover
SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND 51
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS & TRANSF
51-39-25 Use of Retained Earnings 1,065,896 1,065,896 56,106 889,511 945,617 Roll over unexpended capital funds from prior year.
Total CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS & TRANSF: 1,065,896 1,065,896 56,106 889,511 945,617
CAPITAL PROJECTS
51-72-20 SS20]| 4450 S to 4475 S; 250 E 210,000 210,000 0 210,000 210,000
51-72-22 SS22| 300 W to 370 W; 4750 S 80,000 80,000 0 80,000 80,000
51-72-23 S$S23| 5000 S Wash Blvd 300 W 255,000 255,000 0 225,000 225,000
51-72-24 SS24| LINE 275,250,200 W 185,000 185,000 0 185,000 185,000
Total CAPITAL PROJECTS: 730,000 730,000 0 700,000 700,000
CAPITAL EQUIPMENT
51-73-02 Capital Equipment 118,294 118,294 10,000 118,294 128,294
51-73-03 Fleet Replacements 128,425 103,088 25,337 5,000 71,217 76,217
Total CAPITAL EQUIPMENT: 246,719 103,088 143,631 15,000 189,511 204,511
SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND 51 Revenue Total:
1,065,896 1,065,896 56,106 889,511 945,617
SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND 51 Expenditure Total:
976,719 103,088 873,631 15,000 889,511 904,511
Total SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND 51: 89,177 -103,088 192,265 41,106 0 41,106

Grand Totals:

89,177 -103,088 192,265 41,106 0 41,106




Attachment
WTC Resolution No 24-15

CITY OF WASHINGTON TERRACE

Budget Worksheet - Budget Adj OCT fund52
Period 00/24 (07/01/2024) - 09/24 (09/30/2024)

Page: 1

2023-24 2023-24 2024-25 2024-25 2024-25 Justification
Prior year Prior year Current year Prior year Current year
Account Number Account Title Budget Unexpended Budget Unexpended Adj Budget
rollover
STORM WATER ENTERPRISE FUND 52
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS & TRANSF
52-39-30 Use of Retained Earnings 689,805 689,805 75,000 1,030,085 1,105,085 Roll over unexpended capital funds from prior year.
Total CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS & TRANSF: 689,805 689,805 75,000 1,030,085 1,105,085
CAPITAL PROJECTS
52-71-07 SD6 | REGIONAL DETENT BASIN 276,983 276,983 0 276,983 276,983
52-71-16 SD16 Relief Line 4850 S-300 W 110,000 110,000 0 110,000 110,000
52-71-21 SD21 Intersection Drain Improv 170,865 9 170,856 10,000 170,865 180,865
52-71-24 SD24 Drain Pad 25,000 25,000 0 25,000 25,000
52-71-26 SD26 | 42" Line 500 S-300 W 85,000 85,000 0 85,000 85,000
Total CAPITAL PROJECTS: 667,848 9 667,839 10,000 667,848 677,848
CAPITAL EQUIPMENT
52-73-02 Capital Equipment 243,000 243,000 157,000 243,000 400,000
52-73-03 Fleet Replacements 119,237 119,237 0 119,237 119,237
Total CAPITAL EQUIPMENT: 362,237 362,237 157,000 362,237 519,237
STORM WATER ENTERPRISE FUND 52 Revenue Total:
689,805 689,805 75,000 1,030,085 1,105,085
STORM WATER ENTERPRISE FUND 52 Expenditure Total:
1,030,085 9 1,030,076 167,000 1,030,085 1,197,085
Total STORM WATER ENTERPRISE FUND 52: -340,280 -9 -340,271 -92,000 0 -92,000
Grand Totals: -340,280 -9 -340,271 -92,000 0 -92,000




Attachment
WTC Resolution No 24-15

CITY OF WASHINGTON TERRACE

Budget Worksheet - Budget Adj OCT fund53
Period 00/24 (07/01/2024) - 09/24 (09/30/2024)

Page: 1

2023-24 2023-24 2023-24 2024-25 2024-25 2024-25 Justification
Prior year Prior year Prior year Current year Prior year Current year
Account Number Account Title Budget Actual Unexpended Budget Unexpended Adj Budget
rollover
PARKS & OPEN SPACE CIP FUND 53
Contributions & Transfers
53-36-90 Use of beginning fund balance 432,623 432,623 0 348,655 348,655 Roll over unexpended capital funds from prior year.
Total Contributions & Transfers: 432,623 432,623 0 348,655 348,655
Expenditures
53-70-04 Parking Lot & Sidewalk O&M 94,242 14,976 79,266 15,000 79,266 94,266
53-70-28 Capital Facilities Plan 10,000 3,921 6,079 5,000 6,079 11,079
53-70-29 Water Conservation Projects 44,473 44,473 25,000 44,473 69,473
Total Expenditures: 148,715 18,896 129,819 45,000 129,818 174,818
Rohmer Park Improvements
53-71-15 PK15 Rohmer Park Improvements 135,000 9,559 125,441 335,000 125,440 460,440
53-71-29 PK28 Pickleball Complex Phasl| 1,177,348 1,101,950 75,398 60,000 75,397 135,397
Total Rohmer Park Improvements: 1,312,348 1,111,510 200,838 395,000 200,837 595,837
Lions Park Improvements
53-73-01 PK10 Lions Park Improvements 18,000 18,000 0 18,000 18,000
Total Lions Park Improvements: 18,000 18,000 0 18,000 18,000
PARKS & OPEN SPACE CIP FUND 53 Revenue Total:
432,623 432,623 0 348,655 348,655
PARKS & OPEN SPACE CIP FUND 53 Expenditure Total:
1,479,063 1,130,406 348,657 440,000 348,655 788,655
Total PARKS & OPEN SPACE CIP FUND 53: -1,046,440 -1,130,406 83,966 -440,000 0 -440,000
Grand Totals: -1,046,440 -1,130,406 83,966 -440,000 0 -440,000




Attachment
WTC Resolution No 24-15

CITY OF WASHINGTON TERRACE

Budget Worksheet - Budget Adj OCT fund55
Period 00/24 (07/01/2024) - 09/24 (09/30/2024)

Page: 1

2023-24 2023-24 2023-24 2024-25 2024-25 2024-25 Justification
Prior year Prior year Prior year Current year Prior year Current year
Account Number Account Title Budget Actual Unexpended Budget Unexpended Adj Budget
rollover
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 55
Contributions and Transfers
55-39-44 Use of Fund Balance - General 1,639,852 1,639,852 728,908 944,467 1,673,375 Roll over unexpended capital funds from prior year.
Total Contributions and Transfers: 1,639,852 1,639,852 728,908 944,467 1,673,375
Buildings
55-45-03 Parking Lot & Sidewalk O&M 11,959 -11,959 0 0 0
55-45-04 BM4 112,658 112,658 0 96,463 96,463
55-45-06 City Hall 51,000 19,927 31,073 16,000 31,072 47,072
55-45-80 Public Works Facility 4,236 -4,236 10,000 0 10,000
Total Buildings: 163,658 36,123 127,535 26,000 127,535 153,535
Information Technology
55-50-01 IT Replacements/Upgrades 57,351 11,587 45,764 10,000 45,763 55,763
Total Information Technology: 57,351 11,587 45,764 10,000 45,763 55,763
Non-Road Fleet
55-60-01 Fleet Replacements Non-Streets 243,227 82,139 161,088 10,000 161,027 171,027
55-60-02 Equipment Non-Streets 683,097 72,955 610,142 1,015,000 610,142 1,625,142
Total Non-Road Fleet: 926,324 155,094 771,230 1,025,000 771,169 1,796,169
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 55 Revenue Total:
1,639,852 1,639,852 728,908 944,467 1,673,375
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 55 Expenditure Total:
1,147,333 202,805 944,528 1,061,000 944,467 2,005,467
Total CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 55: 492,519 -202,805 695,324 -332,092 0 -332,092
Grand Totals: 492,519 -202,805 695,324 -332,092 0 -332,092




Attachment
WTC Resolution No 24-15

CITY OF WASHINGTON TERRACE

Budget Worksheet - Budget Adj OCT fund56
Period 00/24 (07/01/2024) - 09/24 (09/30/2024)

Page: 1

2023-24 2023-24 2023-24 2024-25 2024-25 2024-25 Justification
Prior year Prior year Prior year Current year Prior year Current year
Account Number Account Title Budget Actual Unexpended Budget Unexpended Adj Budget
rollover

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND ROADS 56
Other Revenue
56-38-14 Grant Revenue 2,702,831 156,369 2,546,462 0 2,546,462 2,546,462 Roll over unexpended capital funds from prior year.

Total Other Revenue: 2,702,831 156,369 2,546,462 0 2,546,462 2,546,462
Contributions and Transfers
56-39-43 Use of Fund Balance - Roads 837,533 837,533 0 1,019,419 1,019,419

Total Contributions and Transfers: 837,533 837,533 0 1,019,419 1,019,419
Expenditures
56-40-25 Equipment O&M 65,600 22,121 43,479 12,000 43,478 55,478

Total Expenditures: 65,600 22,121 43,479 12,000 43,478 55,478
Road Maintenance
56-41-02 Road Maintenance 714,255 185,641 528,614 497,108 528,613 1,025,721

Total Road Maintenance: 714,255 185,641 528,614 497,108 528,613 1,025,721
Road Fleet
56-42-01 Road Fleet 77,967 51,544 26,423 10,000 72,348 82,348 Road Fleet - roll over includes prior year unexpended and prior

year proceeds from fleet sales.

56-42-02 Road Equipment 139,346 13,037 126,309 105,000 126,309 231,309

Total Road Fleet: 217,313 64,581 152,732 115,000 198,657 313,657
Road (Re)construction Projects
56-43-07 RR8| 4900S; 150E & 300W (CW34) 0 68,220 68,220
56-43-08 RR4F| 300 West Road Project 2,949,093 169,260 2,779,833 68,220 2,711,613 2,779,833
56-43-20 Sidewalks & Pedestrian Ramps 38,361 23,061 15,300 26,250 15,300 41,550

Total Road (Re)construction Projects: 2,987,454 192,321 2,795,133 94,470 2,795,133 2,889,603

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND ROADS 56 Revenue Total:

3,540,364 156,369 3,383,995 0 3,565,881 3,565,881
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND ROADS 56 Expenditure Total:
3,984,622 464,664 3,619,958 718,578 3,565,881 4,284,459
Total CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND ROADS 56: -444,258 -308,295 -135,963 -718,578 0 -718,578




Attachment
WTC Resolution No 24-15

CITY OF WASHINGTON TERRACE Budget Worksheet - Budget Adj OCT fund56 Page: 2
Period 00/24 (07/01/2024) - 09/24 (09/30/2024)

2023-24 2023-24 2024-25 Justific 2024-25 2024-25 2024-25 Justification
Prior year Prior year Prior year Current year Prior year Current year
Account Number Account Title Budget Actual Unexpended Budget Unexpended  Adj Budget
rollover

Grand Totals: 444,258 -308,295 -135,963 718,578 0 718,578 Roll over unexpended capital funds from prior year.




City Council ASHINGTON ] ERRACE
Staff Report
p Utk

Author: Tanon Mathews

Subject: Stormwater Ordinance Change
Date:10/15/2024

Type of Item: Ordinance Change Approval

Summary Recommendation:

Enrolled in the 2024 Utah legislative session, House Bill 507 Construction Amendments (H.B.
507) became law (UT code 19-5-18.3) effective January 1, 2025. This bill addressed construction
site stormwater runoff controls as administered by Municipal Separate Storm Sewer Systems
(MS4s) of which Washington Terrace is one. The bill mandates escalating enforcement
strategies, SWPPP reviewal timelines, inspection options, and documentation, etc. for all MS4s
across the state of Utah. Whereas these requirements have now become state law, Washington
Terrace City must modify City code to reflect conformance with those requirements. The change
in the code modifies the current enforcement strategy to match that mandated in H.B. 507, now
Utah State code 19-5-18.3.

Description:
A. Topic:
a. City ordinance revision.
B. Background:

a. Due to the passage of H.B. 507 Construction Amendments, Washington Terrace

must update and revise City ordinance to match new MS4 oversight requirements.
C. Analysis:

a. Additional changes to H.B. 507 (19-5-18.3) are anticipated in the 2025 legislative
session. To accommodate these potential changes without undue cost or labor, the
current code changes are tied to the statute and will automatically reflect any
future changes.

D. Fiscal Impact:
a. There is no additional, ongoing fiscal impact expected due to this code revision.
E. Department Review:

a. The Public Works Director is aware of these required changes in City code and

the City Attorney drafted the ordinance revision documentation.

Alternatives:

A. Approve the Request:
a. This will allow the City to maintain compliance with the State statute that will
take effect on January 1, 2025.

B. Deny The Request:
a. Ifthe City does not make these changes, the current City code will be in non-
compliance with Utah State stormwater regulations at the start of 2025.



C. Continue the Item/Impact:

a. Although not in effect yet, these changes to stormwater regulation have already
become state law. The City ordinance changes suggested here will match City
code to those state regulations. It is unclear how continued review would yield
any benefit since this action is in response to a Utah State law.



CITY OF WASHINGTON TERRACE
ORDINANCE 2024-09

STORM WATER STATE COMPLIANCE

AN ORDINANCE OF WASHINGTON TERRACE CITY, UTAH, AMENDING
WASHINGTON TERRACE MUNICIPAL CODE (WTMC) SECTION 19.01.130
TO COMPLY WITH STATE LAW RELATING TO STORM WATER
REGULATIONS; SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, Washington Terrace City (hereafter “City”) is a municipal corporation, duly
organized and existing under the laws of the State of Utah;

WHEREAS, Utah Code Annotated §§ 10-8-84 and 10-8-60 allow municipalities in the State of
Utah to exercise certain police powers and nuisance abatement powers, including but not limited to
providing for safety and preservation of health, promotion of prosperity, improve community well-being,
peace and good order for the inhabitants of the City;

WHEREAS, the City is required to comply with Phase II of the Federal Clean Water Act;

WHEREAS, the Utah State Legislature adopted H.B. 507 which meddles with storm water
regulations created by the United States Environmental Protection Agency and administered by the Utah
Department of Environmental Quality;

WHEREAS, this City seeks to reconcile the conflict between State Law and Federal law;

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the City Council of Washington Terrace City, Utah, as
follows:

Section 1: Repealer. Any ordinance or portion of the municipal code inconsistent with this
Ordinance is hereby repealed and any reference thereto is hereby vacated. This Ordinance
is automatically updated and/or repealed if H.B. 507 of the 2024 Legislative Session is
amended and/or repealed.

Section 2: Amendment. WTMC §19.01.130 is amended to read as follows:

19.01.130 Federal And State Compliance.

Nothing in the storm water regulations shall be interpreted to relieve any person from an obligation to
comply with an applicable federal, state, or local law. The following is adopted to be interpreted and
implemented by administrative staff of the City:

1. Utah Code §19-5-105 is hereby adopted by this reference, to the extent that such does not conflict
with Federal Law.
2. Utah Code §19-5-108.3 is hereby adopted by this reference, to the extent that such does not

conflict with Federal Law.

Section 3: Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction determines that any part of this
Ordinance is unconstitutional or invalid, then such portion of this Ordinance, or specific
application of this Ordinance, shall be severed from the remainder, which shall continue
in full force and effect.



Washington Terrace City, Utah Page 2
Ordinance 2024-09 — Storm Water State Compliance

Section 4: Effective date. This Ordinance take effect immediately upon mayoral approval and
posting.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council on this __ day of October, 2024.

MARK ALLEN, Mayor

ATTEST:

City Recorder

RECORDED this _ day of , 2024,

PUBLISHED OR POSTED this  day of ,2024.

CERTIFICATE OF PASSAGE AND PUBLICATION OR POSTING
In accordance with Utah Code Annotated §10-3-713, 1953 as amended, I, the City Recorder of
Washington Terrace City, hereby certify that the foregoing Ordinance was duly passed and published or
posted as required by State Law.

DATE:

City Recorder



Washington Terrace Third Quarter Comparison 2023 - 2024

24-Jul 1 0 12 3 3 3 0 3 32 5
24-Aug 1 1 8 1 2 10 0 1 30 3
24-Sep 1 3 10 1 2 13 (] 1 37 1
quarterly totals 2024 3 4 30 5 7 26 0 5 10 99 9
23-Jul 1 1 13 1 3 5 2 3 3 33 1
23-Aug 0 2 11 0 3 10 0 3 23

23-Sep 0 4 18 1 1 4 3 1 4 37 1




Intake Type

Combined Statistics Report

09/01/24 to 09/30/24

[ Cats 16
EUTH REQ 1
STRAY 15

[ Dogs 4
STRAY 4

[Total Intakes:

20

Outcome Type

09/01/24 to 09/30/24

[ Cats

ADOPTION
OWNER NEW

REHOME EXP

—_— S SN

[ Dogs

N

ADOPTION
OWNER NEW

DISPOSAL

RTO

= A laa AN

[ Total Outcomes:

°)




ATy et s

24509784 WELFARE CHECIWT
24509788 ANIMAL CONTRWT
24509797 FOLLOWUP  WT

24509806 ANIMAL CONTRWT

24509814 FOLLOW UP  WT

24509387 BARKING DOG WT.
24509392 ANIMAL CONTR WT
24509566 ANIMAL CONTR WT
24509583 ANIMAL CONTRWT
24509778 ANIMAL CONTR'WT

24509388 ANIMAL CONTRWT
24509639 ANIMAL CONTR WT
24509702 ANIMAL CONTR WT
24509809 BARKING DOG WT

24508946 FOLLOW UP  WT
24508959 ANIMAL CONTRCWT
24508960 FOLLOW UP  WT
24509151 ANIMAL CONTRCWT
24500186 FOLLOW UP  WT
24509283 ANIMAL CONTRCWT
24509298 ANIMAL CONTRC WT
24500316 ANIMAL CONTRCWT
24509318 FOLLOWUP  WT

24509324 ANIMAL CONTRCWT

24508963 ANIMAL CCWT SO
24508991 ANIMAL CCWT 50
24508057 DEAD ANMWT SO
24509141 ANIMAL CCWT SO
24509148 ANIMALCCWT SO
24509209 ANIMALCIWT SO
24509245 ANIMALCIWT SO

SO 13:57:3409/26/24 OPN 46415450 W
SO 15:56:27 09/26/24 RMK 232 W 4900 S
SO 08:00;14 09/27/24 RMK 232 W 43005
SO 11:05:19 09/27/24 RMK 4400 S 200 W
SO 12:15:51 09/27/24 RMK 232 W 4900 S

SO 07:22:4109/16/24 RMK 390 W 5050 §
S0 08:05:59 09/16/24 RMK 4637 5200 W
S0 11:57:13 09/20/24 CIO 204 W 4900 S
SO 16:29:34 09/20/24 RMK 622 E 5650 S

SO 09:45:12 09/26/24 RMK 135 W 5050 §

50 07:37:09 09/16/24 RMK 409 W 4525 S APT # 2

50 11:09:52 09/23/24 AMK 51795100 E

SO 13:28:18 09/24/24 RMK 4371S200W

SO 11:16:00 09/27/24 RMK 310E 4300 S; E VICTORY RD

SO 09:43:18 09/03/24 RMK 4594 5400 W

SO 14:09;53 09/03/24 RMK 167 W 5450 5

SO 14:50:46 09/03/24 RMK 4594 S 400'W

SO 14:03:01 09/09/24 CIO 75 W 4400 §

SO 10:37:54 09/10/24 RMK 75 W 4400 S; 4fac2
SO 20:00:10 09/11/24 RMK 46485 200 W

SO 15:45:46 09/12/24 RMK 4648 S 200 W, AFACZ
SO 08:39:5109/13/24 RMK 231 W 4850 3

SO 09:40:04 09/13/24 RMK 4637 $200 W

SO 11:47:33 09/13/24 RMK 4637 S 200 W

15:25:11 09/03/24 RMK 4338S275W

08:55:13 09/04/24 RMK 5025 S 300 E; #27 -
08:34:26 09/06/24 RMK 5300 S RIDGELINE DR
09:31:25 09/09/24 RMK 4604 5400 W
13:21:03 09/09/24 RMK 211 E5100S
17:06:57 09/10/24 RMK 230 E 44008
10:38:55 09/11/24 RMK 5025 § 300 E; #27

2452?891 FQLEOW UP WT SO 08:16:43 09/30/24 RMK 310 E 4300 S; 4facl

24509887 EXTRA PATROL WT SO 07:43:48 09/30/24RMK 51005 625 W; ROHMER PARK

24509902 FOLLOW UP

WT SO 10:54:48 09/30/24RMK 4641 $ 450 W

24509921 ANIMAL CONTFWT S0 16:07:39 09/30/24 RMK 46415 450 W




37
30
32
26
31

Sep-24
Aug-24

11

16
21
35
29
23
33
41
38
32
27
26
20
19
14
29
42
29
39
33
17
23
32

10

12
11
24
13
11
13
18
18
13
16
16
13
17
18
11
11

1

Jul-24
Jun-24
May-24
Apr-24
Mar-24
Feb-24
Jan-24
Dec-23
Nov-23
Oct-23
Sep-23
Aug-23
Jul-23
Jun-23
May-23
Apr-23
Mar-23
Feb-23
Jan-23
Dec-22
Nov-22
Oct-22
Sep-22
Aug-22
Jul-22
Jun-22
May-22
Apr-22
Mar-22
Feb-22
Jan-22



18
40

Dec-21

15
21

Nov-21

58
23
26
33
39
22
19

10

15

Oct-21

14
15
11
12

Sep-21

Aug-21

Jul-21

Jun-21
May-21

Apr-21
Mar-21

3

Feb-21

23
30
22
38
41

Jan-21

Dec-20

10
11
16

Nov-20

Oct-20

Sep-20

35

Aug-20

22
19
33
26

Jul-20
Jun-20
May-20

15

Apr-20
Mar-20

27
30
16
22
30
29
19
21

12
13
12

Feb-20

Jan-20
Dec-20

Nov-19

Oct-19

Sep-19

11

Aug-19

24
29
29
32
25

Jul-19
Jun-19
May-19

10

18
10

Apr-19
Mar-19



23
23
13
31

Feb-19

Jan-19
Dec-19

12

Nov-18

23
34
23
17
28
41

Oct-18

13

Sep-18

Aug-18

Jul-18
Jun-18
May-18

18
10

21

13

26
26
15
22
15
40
23
26
30
33
25
44

Apr-18
Mar-18

Feb-18

Jan-18
Dec-18

18
11
16
13
11

Nov-17

Oct-17

Sep-17

Aug-17

Jul-17
Jun-17
May-17

10

19

11

48

17

16
13
16

Apr-17
Mar-17

33
22

14

Feb-17

40
43

11

Jan-17 1
Dec-16 4
Nov-16 4
Oct-16

22
10
11
18

25
29
35
27
23

Sep-16 4
Aug-16 q

Jul-16 >



32

11

Jun-16 4
May-16

18
23

59
54
24
23
30
21

10

16
13

2
1
0
1
3
0

Apr-16
Mar-16

12

10
13
16

Feb-16
Jan-16
Dec 15
Nov 15

17
28
32

1
2
2
3
4
1
2
3
2

14
17
10
11

Oct-15
Sep-15

44

12

Aug-15
Jul-15
Jun-15

26
34
39
21

13
14

16
15

May-15
Apr-15

18
24
21

Mar-15

10

1

Feb-15

Jan-15
Dec-15

24
22
38

1

Nov-14

27

2
3
1
1
0
0
2
1
2
1
1

Oct-14
Sep-14

26
35

13
10

11
11
12

Aug-14

11 33

11

Jul-14
Jun-14
May-14

23

20
34
31

14
19
13

25

Apr-14
Mar-14

16
19

Feb-14

10

Jan-14
Dec-13

19
32

11

Nov-13

14
16

2
4

Oct-13
Sep-13

30



26
24
25
29
24
29
20
19
16
19
28
27
16
23

17

4
1
2
1
3
0
0
1
1

Aug-13

11
12
10

Jul-13

Jun-13
May-13

16

Apr-13
Mar-13

16
12

Feb-13

Jan-13
Dec-12

10
11
15

Nov-12

2
1
1
1

Oct-12
Sep-12

Aug-12

Jul-12



T H E C 1 T Y OE

RUTY S, SHERIFF’S QUARTERLY Tevvace
FER cop
Q@% Uy :
h Integrity, Initiative, Intelligence July—Sept 2024

i‘&t

& Q&&

THE WEBER COUNTY SHERIFF’'S OFFICE HELPED WITH CROSSWALK AWARENESS DURING THE FIRST FEW
DAYS OF SCHOOL (08/21-08/23) ENCOURAGING PEOPLE TO KEEP THEIR “PHONES DOWN, EYES UP".

Phone: 801-778-6614
E-mail: gcowley@webercountyutah.gov



T Y

T H E C 1

O F

SHERIFF’S QUARTERLY

Tevvace

f?f',““ snn;,,
é?"“ q 0(7*

e‘,)

& Q&e“

Integrity, Initiative, Intelligence

July—Sept 2024

2020 2021 2022 2023
July 510 575 518 467 447
Aug 511 501 503 532 440
Sept 553 629 561 574 503
TOTAL 1574 1705 1582 1573 1390

THIS SHOWS A 11.6% DECREASE IN TOTAL CALLS FOR SERVICE FROM 2023 TO 2024 FOR THE QUARTER..

700

500

300

200

100

o

S YEAR COMPARISON CALLS FOR SERVICE

2021

2022

mJiuly mAug mSept

2023

Chart Area |

2020

2024

5

YEARLY OUTLOOK: NO INDICATIONS OF DRASTIC CHANGES AS THE VARIANCE FLUCTUATIONS BETWEEN THESE
YEARS HAS REMAINED LESS THAN 12%. (UP AND DOWN, WITHOUT ANY SIGNIFICANT CHANGE OVERALL).

Phone: 801-778-6614
E-mail: gcowley@webercountyutah.gov




T H E C 1 T Y © IF
ST S, SHERIFF’S QUARTERLY T&VVM&
R C ()(/

’6‘ ;» % :

Integrity, Initiative, Intelligence Juby—Sept 2024

Sz i \???
xS X
Sl
AR <6 Y

""""S ()Q

24WC28780 — Deputies were involved in a foot pursuit of a shoplifting suspect
from Maverik in WT. Taser deployed and male apprehended without further in-
cident.

24WC28765 — Deputies were surrounded by multiple intoxicated subjects at a
residence in the 400 W block of 5000 S while apprehending a heavily intoxicat-
ed male that was involved in a domestic disturbance. Fellow Law Enforcement
Officers arrived promptly and the situation was handled with minimal force as
the suspect resisted arrest.

24WC29439 — On Ridgeline Drive - Deputies helped a distraught autistic 18
year old male who had a knife and was threatening himself and others. He was
peacefully taken into custody and was committed for a mental health evaluation.

24W(C32348 — Porta John burned down in Rohmer Park. Three individuals

identified through corroborative efforts with WCSO SRO Deputies, WT Fire,

and WT City Staff. Video surveillance footage from the park proved to be vital

for being able to 1dentify the suspects. The suspects reached an agreement with

tfhle City to pay for the damages and received misdemeanor charges instead of
elonies.

24WC33316—Recovered stolen vehicle. Vehicle fled from Deputies, who did
not pursue due to public safety concerns. The vehicle was found ditched in the
area. Deputies spent time following up on leads and evidence indicated there are
several juveniles involved in this but as of this date, no arrests have been made.

Phone: 801-778-6614
E-mail: gcowley@webercountyutah.gov



IR EIRE C 1 T Y OE

ST S SHERIFF’S QUARTERLY
i ggy. co

Integrity, Initiative, Intelligence Jub—Sept 2024

Phone: 801-778-6614
E-mail: gcowley@webercountyutah.gov



. . City of
g:gf‘;{oel:;ft' WAS}i-IINGTOZh} ERRACE

Author: Tom Hanson

Subject: Civility Statement

Date: October 15, 2025

Type of Item: Discussion / Action

Summary Recommendation: Staff would recommend the approval and implementation of a
civility statement that can be used in all meetings, interactions with stakeholders and all we
encounter. Mayor Allen approached staff to find a short meaningful statement that could capture
the essence of civility.

We have found that civil engagement can be encouraged through:

1. Formal civility resolution

2. Messaging along with the public comment section of meeting on each agenda

3. Website statement

4. Include commitment to civil behavior statement in all formal oaths

5. Placement of message on city owned properties, particularly where engagement with the
public occurs.

Description:

A. Topic: Civil Engagement

B. Background: As a result of the deterioration of public civility in many aspects of
communication seems like a good idea to help set the example for excellence in civility.

C. Analysis: The deterioration in civility in communication is marked by an increase in
hostile, disrespectful, and polarized exchanges, both in personal interactions and public
discourse. Social media and digital platforms have amplified this trend, as anonymity and
the speed of online interactions can encourage inflammatory or thoughtless responses.
This shift often erodes meaningful dialogue, replacing it with conflict and
misunderstanding, making it harder to foster cooperation or empathy in both professional
and social settings.

At City Council’s direction we could move forward with any or all of the following:
1. Adopt a concise formal civility resolution

2. Add a brief civility statement to the public comment section of the public meeting
agendas

3. Add a brief statement regarding civility to appliable sections of the website
4. Include one sentence commitment to civil behavior statement in all formal oaths

5. Place simple visual at the front counter, as well as on the sign-in table, on the public
podium, and at each seat on the dais in Council chamber



D. Fiscal Impact: Minimal ... just a few posters notes and inhouse training for Mayor,
Council and staff.

E. Department Review: This statement may help remind all of us to use civility in all
aspects of communication with one another and the community at large.

Council meeting statement:

Washington Terrace City is committed to civility: We strive to act and speak with dignity,
courtesy, and respect at all times-All are asked to join us to act and speak accordingly.



	StormwaterCodeStaffReport_10-15-2024.pdf
	Author: Tanon Mathews
	Subject: Stormwater Ordinance Change
	Date:10/15/2024
	Type of Item: Ordinance Change Approval
	Summary Recommendation:

	City Council
	Staff Report

	Copy of WT 3rd Quarter Comparison.pdf
	Sheet1
	Copy of current WT raw data.pdf
	Data  July 2012- Current


	Budget Adj WS combined.pdf
	BudgetAdj_staff_report.pdf
	Author:   Shari’ Garrett
	Subject:  Budget Adjustment
	Date:  October 15, 2024
	Type of Item: MOTION/RESOLUTION
	Summary Recommendations: That the City Council, by resolution, approve the budget adjustment as described in Resolution 24-15.
	C. Recommendation: That the City Council, by resolution, approve the budget adjustment as described in Resolution 24-15.

	City Council
	Staff Report


	staff report Civility Statement_.pdf
	Author: Tom Hanson
	Subject: Civility Statement
	Date: October 15, 2025
	Type of Item: Discussion / Action
	Summary Recommendation: Staff would recommend the approval and implementation of a civility statement that can be used in all meetings, interactions with stakeholders and all we encounter. Mayor Allen approached staff to find a short meaningful statem...
	We have found that civil engagement can be encouraged through:
	1. Formal civility resolution
	2. Messaging along with the public comment section of meeting on each agenda
	3. Website statement
	4. Include commitment to civil behavior statement in all formal oaths
	5. Placement of message on city owned properties, particularly where engagement with the public occurs.

	City Council
	Staff Report




